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Dear Shareholders, Business Partners, Colfeagues,

The year 2017 was quite difficult for the ICZ Group for various reasons. It has not met the planned
budget and even worse, none of the ICZ divisions had either. As a group, ICZ has ended the year
with a very small profit and its turnover was far below the budget. The main reason was that many
projects were postponed ~ especially government projects in the Czech Republic and Slovakia. The
other reason was that we are still learning to do business in new territories and there it seems the
tead times are much longer than we have previously anticipated. Having said that it is also a positive
message for the year 2018. We assume that the projects postponed in 2017 will happen in 2018.
ICZ as a group shall put much more effort into the diversification of its customer portfolio. Especially
during the last couple of years, the experience has been that government projects are very prone
to postponement or cancelation.

2017 overview

The ICZ Group has continued to invest into the development of several products, which are
considered important for future growth / territorial expansion. The Air Traffic Control system
LETVIS® has been successfully completed and officially certified. It seems to be a successful product
on markets in new territories.

The heaithcare information system ICZ AMIS*HD® has been modified to aflow it to be used in
Russian speaking countries where we see quite a large potential in 2018.

Despite all the effort invested in territorial expansion there have not been many commercial
successes in this area. Activities have continued in Georgia, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyz Republic, Nepal
and Vietnam. Malawi seems to be a success — one contract has been signed last year and another
one is about to be signed in the year 2018,

Unfortunately the growth of ICZ Slovakia has continued to slow down in the year 2017. Government
IT spending is still almost stalled after years of heavy investments. ICZ Slovakia needs to
concentrate on customer portfolio diversification even more than the rest of the group.

The division of Infrastructure is still in the process of a major restructuring. Once this is done in
2018 we believe the results will improve.

Even though the ICZ security division was one of the best performing divisions in the year 2017 it
still did not achieve its planned budget. The Security division needs to grow much faster in the year
2018 to keep up with the market development.

The ICZ Group has been evaluating several potential acquisitions during the year 2017. We have
made 3 difficult decision to stop one in the process of due diligence but hopefully will find some sort

of special cooperation with the targeted company.

The ICZ Group has been very active in non-commercial/charity activities for many years and its
newly established foundation (Nada¢ni fond ICZ) has been quite active in the year 2017.
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2018 outlook
The ICZ Group plans substantial growth in 2018 both in profit and in revenue,

The ICZ Group believes it will benefit from the projects that were postponed in the year 2017,

The ICZ Group shall continue its process of territorial expansion with projects in Kazakhstan,

Kyrgyzstan, Georgia, Bangladesh, Vietnam and Malawi. After several years ICZ projects in Ukraine
seerns to be on the right track.

The ICZ Group will put an effort into further growth by successful acquisition.

N z
Pavel Rosendorf, Chief Executive Officer of IC? N.V.

Amsterdam, 29 March 2018
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yirectors’

1.1 General Information

LCompany Profile

ICZ Group belongs among the leading CEE suppliers of the integrated software and infrastructure
solutions market. Its portfolio consists of tailor-made application software products, services, and
solutions to meet the needs of all areas of information and communication technology. Being based
on a wide spectrum of platforms and technologies, the offered services are vendor independent,
The Group offer includes the custom-made application development, featured by information
protection and security projects. The establishing unit, ICZ a.s. company, started its operations on
the Czech IT Market in 1997 and since then acquired and successfully integrated more than 30
companies.

Within the broader spectrum of company solutions, ICZ Group manages a wide service portfolio
beginning from the classic information systems delivery up to the entire network overhauls,
including interdepartmental systems on the basis of outsourcing and managed services. The ICZ's
customers come primarily from the governmental sector, healthcare, telecommunications,
transportation, utilities, defence, finance, manufacturing & logistics and the solutions do cover the
following branches: applications software, system integrations, security, communications,
infrastructure, document administration and procedure. Consulting and analytic services are an
integral part of the offering, as weil.

History and Development

The main operating company ICZ a.s., a joint stock company - established and operating under the
laws of the Czech Republic - was incorporated on July 21, 1997. Its business of ICZ a.5. was focused
on system integration, network design and complex integrated IT solutions, in that period.

From 1998 through 2001, ICZ a.s. gradually acquired and merged with 14 small and medium-sized
Czech IT services companies expanding and strengthening its range of solutions and services into
the data network security, healthcare applications, card management, warehouse logistics,
application development, web design & applications and network design. ICZ a.s. commenced its
operations in the Slovak Republic in 2001,

In 2002, a foreign financial investor became a 35-per-cent sharehoider in ICZ a.s. in order to
provide the company with new funds to boost ICZ a.s. further strategic growth.

In 2002 and 2003, ICZ a.s. acquired and integrated through mergers further three companies
engaged in network design and hardware & software resale. ICZ a.s. also acquired 100 per cent
shares in S.ICZ a.s. as a result of these mergers.

In 2003 and 2004, ICZ a.s. enriched its ERP portfolio by becoming a part of the Oracle Partner
Network and increasing its spectrum of solutions to include the Cracle E-Business Suite and became
the sole partner of Primavera Systems Inc. products {project management solution) in the Czech
Republic, too.

In 2005, the acquisition of Expert & Partner engineering CZ, a.s. and its subsidiary Expert & partner
engineering spol. s r.o. enabled ICZ a.s. to expand its spectrum with network solutions. Thanks to
this acquisition, ICZ a.s. became the largest partner of Cisco Systems in the Czech Republic. Late
2005, ICZ a.s. acquired EXPRIT spol. s.r.0., including its 90%-owned subsidiary Exprit s.r.o., a
Slovak IT services company focusing mainly on document management sclutions.

www.icz.nl 5
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In 2006, ICZ a.s. expanded its portfolio into telecommunications field with concentration on the
voice communication infrastructure, voice portals, voice detection systems and contact centres,

In 2007, more other companies, namely Amaio Technologies, a.s., a Czech entity focused on the
Java based applications development, furthermore Informa MS, s.r.0., a Slovakia-based company
developing a hospital information software and also the remaining 10 per cent of Exprit s.r.o.
(renamed to ICZ Slovakia s.r.0.) were acquired. In September, ICZ a.s. merged Expert & partner
engineering, spol. s r.o. into Expert & Partner engineering CZ, a.s. In addition, ICZ a.s. has
expanded its portfolio with a new Consulfing Services Division, September 2007, as well.

In October 2007, the ICZ N.V. was established and incorporated in the Netherlands as a public
company with limited liability (N.V.). On the basis of a sale and purchase agreement, 100 per cent
of the ICZ a.s. shares were acquired by ICZ N.V., in November 2007.

In 2008, a new entity, D.ICZ Slovakia a.s., was established. Further on, ICZ a.s. has taken over
100% ownership of a Czech company ALES, s.r.o., while D.ICZ Slovakia has taken over 100%
ownership of ALES a.s., in Slovakia. These two companies together became the leading supplier of
the ATM systerns and some other special products for both civil and military customers. The
companies operated in the region of Central and Eastern Europe and had a branch in Dubai, too.

In December 2008, ICZ a.s. has acquired 100% ownership of DELINFO, spol. s r.o, a company
specialized on development and implementation of special command as well as special geographic
information systems, especially for the Czech and Slovak Army.

In November 2009, ICZ a.s. moved into new headquarters premises in Prague. In that year, the
Oracle E-Business Suite and Primavera Systems solutions were removed from the portfalio.

In May 2010, ICZ N.V. has agreed to purchase back 311 866 of its own shares from a financial
investor. The transaction was accomplished successfully in July 2010.

In July 2011, ICZ N.V. has agreed to purchase back 467 800 of its own shares from a financial
investor. The transaction was successfully concluded in September 2011.

In the same year, [CZ Group established two new branch offices abroad. The first opening took
place in Banja Luka, Bosnia And Herzegovina in November; the other one was in Kiev, Ukraine in
December.

In June 2012, ICZ N.V. has agreed to purchase back 779 666 of its own shares from a financial
investor. The transaction was successfully concluded in July 2012. In November, the branch office
in Kiev, Ukraine has moved into new premises and changed its seat, accordingly.

In 2013, ICZ Group took measures to boost its own effectiveness, namely: partial staff restructuring
aiming to operation costs reduction, administrative simplification, internal transfer pricing and
project controlling implementation.

In 2014, the steps adopted during previous year brought fruit and continued in effort to reduce the
cost of the abroad operation. The Ukrainian office in Kiev was restructured, that of UAE in Dubai
was decided to be sold; however, the transaction was not finalized by the year-end, yet.

In 2015, ICZ N.V. changed its seat. The sale of the UAE office was successfully concluded. In
October 2015, ICZ N.V. has agreed to purchase back 3 912 of its own shares from a small
shareholders. The transaction was successfully concluded in December 2015.

In connection with the running WIM project, to enrich relevant capabilities, a company Bezpelna
ulice a.s. was acquired by Amaio Technologies, a.s., in 2016. Apart from that, a new entity within
the ICZ Group was established in 2016, too, namely the Nadacni fond ICZ, endowment fund. In
July 2016, the business premises in Ceské Bud&jovice were moved into new location in the city.

In December 2017, a new company ICZ Invest a.s. solely owned by ICZ N.V., with a focus onto
foreign territories operations, was established. In 2017, the company Bezpelna ulice a.s. merged
with its former mother Amaio Technologies, a.s., completely. During the year, two properties,
namely the buildings in Strakonice (Czech Republic) and Kosické Olsany (Slovakia) were sold,
completely.

i
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Quality and Reliability Assessment
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Parinerships with Technology Providers

ICZ enjoys long lasting partnerships with major reputable international technology providers. As a
part of these relationships it disposes of ability to canstantly raise the qualification level within the
partnership programs they provide. The 2017 partnership levels are indicated in the chart below: |

Company Partnership Level _ 1
Cisco Goid Certified Partner . . g
Com.puter Aé;ociatés” . . Enterprise Solut.ion Par.‘;n.e.r !
CyberArk - o . Partner i
e . . . Regf-sté,—ed pa,—thé,— g
f.rowrﬁ.é;m .. Silver Partner o ::
ey T g
Hewiett Iséckard ) o N N Silver.Partnér . 5
Checkpoint - - Gold Partner %
- . . o . . Reseler .
Mfcrofocus.. o R . .. Busjness Partne.r R R R . %
Mlcrosﬁff - o : N Microsoft G(IJ.Id Partnér {4x.éc;.ld, IIIJI(HSilver.)m o E
oracle T L . ol Partner S -
Symanéé.c o o . N Registerad Pértr;:ef o . %
VMware ” : . . . Enterprise Solution Pro;fdef o . E
Zabbi).(. B N o Certified Partner N -
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Drganizational Structure

ICZ N.V. is the parent company of the main operating company ICZ a.s., which, directly or
indirectly, owns the subsidiaries shown on the chart below. In none of the subsidiaries is the power
of voting rights different than the portion of ownership interest as presented below.

ICZ N.V.

mo%l l 100%

ICZ a.s. ICZ Invest a.s.

v

l 100% i 100% ¢ 100% llDD"fa l 160% lIOO% &100%
|
DELINFO lobd D.icz Expert & Amaio
5.z spol. Siovakia ALES s.ro. Slovakia Partner Eng. | | Technolegies
a-s sr.o. a.s. a.s. CZ, as. a.s.
o
ilGO% v 100%
100%4
12 Polska ICZ Bosnia &
$.p.2.0. operation Herzegovina |operation ALES as.
limited, limited,
temporarily temporarily
99% 1%
> cz +
Ukraine
100%
Nadaéni
fond 1CZ j.e.
"ICZ Endowrment Fund”

Compared to the previous year, the following change happened during 2017: a new company ICZ
Invest a.s. solely owned by ICZ N.V., with a focus onto foreign territories operations, was
established. Bezpeéna ulice a.s. merged with Amaic Technologies a.s.

Targets for 2017 and their Fulfilment

The following targets were set for 2017:

. Continuing foreign activities expansion. The effort to accomplish this really strategic
goal kept going in 2017 in an intensive extent. Although the progress is weaker than desired,
the ICZ Group reached some success, even s¢. The delivery and integration of LETVIS ATC
system as well as LETVIS SIM simulator for Kamuzu international airport in Lilongwe,
Malawi, was an important achievement, definitely. Whole supply itself was subcontracted to
NEC Corporation, thus, after the fruitful collaboration in Nepal and Bangiadesh, this was the
third mutual project, already. Another meaningful success was/is the five-year service
contract for LETVIS systems maintenance in Kopitnari and Tbilisi airports, Georgia.
Mareover, for Tbilisi airport was concluded another contract, namely for re-location and
upgrade of LETVIS ATC a LETVIS SIM systems, as well. Besides the commercial effect, both

www.icz.nl E)




TCZ Annual Report 2017

these contracts prove a very good quality of the long-term cooperation between ICZ Group
(namely its daughter ALES) with its Georgian partner, the Sakaeronavigatsia company.
Some minor orders were related also to the existing installations in Fujairah airport, UAE
and in Kathmandu, Nepal. Regarding other portfolio fields, the completion of Transplantation
Registry for Ministry of Healthcare in Kazakhstan is worth mentioning, too. Apart from that,
further promising negotiations concerning new opportunities in Georgia and Vietnam, where
especially the latter can be perceived as a good step towards long-term cooperation in the
region. Nevertheless, there was no really new territory achievement, in 2017. For example,
a series of negotiations have begun in Kyrgyzstan, Bulgaria or Romania, however, results
depend on their further development,

. Continuing product portfolio modernization. This long-term goal was accomplished in
rather wide extent. During 2017, the ICZ Group portfalio was modernized in following items:
In the security portfolio, the development of the LANPCSe solution continued in terms of
higher levels of classification; the ICZ LogManager product was further enhanced too, and
was put into operation in Czech Prison-Service, consecutively. In the healthcare products
family, the ongoing development of its "flagship”, i.e. of the ICZ AMIS*HD® complex
system, brought ICZ AMIS*HD® HOSPITALIZATION module; in addition, a new 'remote-
care' application called /BD ASSISTANT intended for patients suffering with Crohn's disease
was created, as well; apart from that, a new solution supporting the healthcare facilities in
their transition to a new way of reporting called DRG ASSISTANT was developed and put on
the market, successfully (over 50 per cent market-share in Slovakia). For the government
sector, there was a new EIS (Electronic Identification Services) 'authentication module'
designed to enhance existing governmental registries; another solution, namely the
WORKFLOW SERVICES module, was developed to manage the typical governmental (but
not only those) in-house processes. Further on, a new UPVS Adapter was developed to
simplify the official Data-Box communication, in Slovakia. Regarding the document and/or
content management systems, there was a new MDU system for methodology of shredding
proceedings for archived data created; the manufacturing and logistics field was enhanced
with a solution interconnecting the WMS (Warehouse Management System) with RTLS
(Real-Time Locating System) using the UWB (Ultra-Wide Bandwidth) technology. As far as
the military portfolio is concerned, rather demanding upgrade of previous LETVIS system,
lasting for several years, was accomplished with its new certified version ICZ LETVIS,
successfully. Further, the ICZ DELINFOS® solution was upgraded in terms of geographic
data operation ability, within the Czech Ministry of Defence project framework. The vehicle
C2 system SAMET was upgraded for the 'Augmented Reality' operation ability, and, within
the project framework for the Czech Military Research Institute, a specialized Land Rover
vehicle was enhanced with specific sensors determined for chemical exploration,

-

. Complex consolidation of the employees expertise and its sharing both inside - as
well as proactive offering outside of the ICZ Group. The project of comprehensive
consolidation of emplayee competencies and their sharing both outside and within the ICZ
Group, was suspended in 2017 due to other priorities. The professional competencies have
been partially consolidated in relation to the professional-technical certifications of the
employees and, consecutively, also to the specific needs within the Group divisions. A
detailed analysis of professional competencies has taken place only to a limited extent,
however, always an the basis of a specific requirement and need. Any complex system or
record keeping of professional competencies has not been established, yet. The project is
expected to be restored in 2018.

1.2 Product Portfolio

1CZ Group does focus its business on providing the complex IT solutions, which typically involve a
wide range of products and services that we supply on a regular basis to our customers. Thanks to
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its long-term experience and broad market approach, ICZ Group is able to cover the who!e project
life cycle of complex IT projects mainly by using our own highly qualified professionals or, where
needed, by subcontracting partners with whom we experience a long-term business relationship.
Our approach towards our customers is to lead and accompany them throughout the entire process
and to render our services along the value chain from consuitancy services to maintenance and up-
selling activities and further development.

17T Security

IT security is the ICZ Group's core competence and, as a rule, it is an integral part of all solutions
and services offered. From this point of view, the portfolio covers complex security-oriented IT
solutions ranging from infrastructure to applications and their integration.

In terms of the ICZ Group, the core security offering is provided by the S.ICZ a.s. Having been
granted a “Top Secret” level certification by the National Security Office, the 5.ICZ a.s. is the only
leading IT services company on the Czech IT market able to participate in sensitive projects
demanding that leve! of confidentiality. Further, both ICZ a.s. and $.ICZ a.s. have also been granted
international certification for Information Security Management Systems (ISMS) according to ISO
27001. A number of the ICZ Group consultants are quafified and certified experts (CISA - Certified
Information Systems Auditor) with classified information clearance and extensive local and
international experience, including participation in NATO projects.

S.ICZ a.s. performs development, manufacturing and implementation of its own HW and SW
cryptographic and security products, both for just sensitive and classified information.

The Group’s projects and solutions cover the following areas:

. Security Integration

. Information Security Management System (ISMS)
. Trustworthy Computing Platform®

. Identity and Access Management

. Secure Communication Infrastructure

) Cyber Defense

. Classified Information Systems

IT Infrastructure

The ICZ Group Infrastructure portfolic covers both Information and Communication Technology
(ICT) and Security services and solutions. The offering is built on strong architectural pillars of
reliable technologies. Broad range of services and technology as well as related tasks like
consultancy, ptanning, designing, implementation, monitoring and operation are included.

The following listing is a summary of selected solutions being offered:

. Enterprise Networks infrastructure including Service Provider and Wireless Networks
. Data Center technologies, Disaster Recovery, Virtualization and cloud systems

. Enterprise, Service Provider and Industrial (SCADA) Network Security

. Next-Generation Firewalls and Anti-X systems

. Supervisory and Performance Management Systems

. Unified Communication, Video and Team Collaboration Solutions

www.icz.nl 11
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Applications and Indusiry Soplutions

Applications and industry solutions are typically the most visible part of our portfolio. We provide a
wide range of applications and industry solutions in the following areas:

Applications and industry solutions for the government and public sectors

. Support of administrative processes
) National registries
. Document Management Systems (DMS)

Applications and industry solutions for the heaithcare sector

. Hospital and/or Management Information System (HIS, MIS}
. Picture Archiving and Communication System (PACS)

. Business Intelligence - Solutions and Services

. Clinical Process Information Systems

. Diagnosis Related Group {(DRG) Systems Support

. Regional Healthcare Information Systems

Defence Solutions

. Air Command and Control Systems (C2)

. Integration of Civil and Military Air Traffic Control Services

. Ground Forces Tactical Command and Control Systems (GF TCCS)

. Sensor Integration and Interoperability standards implementation

. Virtual Simulation Training for Military, Police, Firefighter and Rescue personnel

Traffic Management Solutions

. Air Traffic Management Systems

. Simulators for Air Traffic Controller's Training

. Radar / Surveillance Data Distribution and Format Conversion Systems
. Consoles and Special Furniture for Air Traffic Control

Enterprise Application Solutions

. Customer Relationship Management

. Warehouse Logistics (WMS) and Automatic Data Capttre (ADC)

. Enterprise Content Management {document digitization, workflow, archiving, etc.)

. Traffic issues (Weight-In-Motion (WIM), parking and traffic offenses surveillance, etc.)
Services

1CZ Group renders a broad range of services when delivering our solutions to our customers. The
range of services does include:

. System Integration
. Customer Application Development
. Support and Installation

< -t j
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. Qutsourcing

. ICT Consulting and Analyses
] IT Training and Education
www.icz.nl
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1.3 Financial Performance in 2017

Sales

Reaching CZK 1 070 811 thousands in the year end December 31, 2017, the total sales revenue
decreased by 26,9% as compared to CZK 1 465 733 thousands in the year end December 31, 2016.
The sales revenue from services decreased from CZK 1 326 629 thousand in the year ending
December 31, 2016 by 28,5% to 948 022 CZK thousand in the year ending December 31, 2017.

1600 000

1400 000

1200000

1000 000

A Services Revenue
800 000

@ Total Sales Revenue
600 000

400 000

200 000

2016 2017
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The following table shows the horizontal breakdown of 2016 and 2017 sales revenue by the 1CZ's

main service areas:

SALES in thousand CZK
IT Training and Education
1S Consulting
Outsourcing

Systemns Integration

Custermer Application Development

Support and Installation
Sales revenue from services
Resale of hardware and software

Total sales revenue

2016

138 950

202 516

475 259

240 080

267 478

1326 629

139 104

1465733

Annual Report 2017

2017

2419

94 966
197 518
254 539
167 260
231 320
948 022
122 789

1070 811

31 Training & Education

B IS Consulting

B Qutsourcing

B System Integration

3 Customer application
development

Support & Installation

B HW and SW Resale
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The following table shows the vertical breakdown of 2016 and 2017 sales revenue by the main
customer groups:

SALES in thousand CZK 2016 2017
Government 821 189 627 470
Manufacturing 127 526 88 662
Healthcare 203 113 123 407
Telecommunication 69 630 40 488
Firance 54 549 60 958
Utilities 13 413 21 209
Other 176 313 108 617
Total sales revenue 1465733 1070811

B Government

@ Manufacturing

Healthcare

B Telecommmunications

Bl Finance

B Utilities

£ Other

\m
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Profit from Dperations

In 2017, the Group reached a profit from operations of CZK 8 739 thousands compared to the profit
from operations of CZK 93 658 thousands as achieved in 2016, what means decrease by 90,7%, in
fact.

Profit before Taxes

In 2017, the profit before taxes reached a profit of CZK 5 087 thousands, as compared to the profit
of CZK 91 991 thousands in 2016, what means decrease by 94,5%, in fact.

Mot Profit from the Year

In 2017, the Group reached a net profit of CZK 5 798 thousands compared to the net profit of CZK
68 563 thousands in 2016, what means decrease by 91,5%, in fact.

Profit for 2016 and 2017

Profit/(loss) from profit before tax Net Profit for the
operations axes year

100 000

90 000

80000 |

70000 |-

60000 -+

50000 -

40 000 -+

30000

20000

10 000

The chart above shows a '2017 vs. 2016' comparison of the profits acc. to the previous articles.
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Cash and Liguidity

Cash and cash equivalents increased from CZK 221 565 thousands as of the year end 2016 to
CZK 273 765 thousands as of the year end 2017, what means 1,2 multiple growth, in fact.
The equity to total assets ratio was 46,1% as of 31 December 2017 as compared to 43,2% as of

31 December 2016.

Activities in Research angd Development

In addition to the third party software that ICZ Group provides as a part of its solutions, the main
engagement is in the development of own software. The development can take forms of localization
or customization of existing software packages by adding new functionalities and/or modules, or
developing completely new software solutions.

The following table shows the cost of our internally developed software solutions over the last two
years:

Year 2016 2017

Costs (in thousand CZK) 31 691 26 272

www.lcz.nl 13
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1.4 S5elected Financial Information
{(Key Figures)
The selected financial data provided below have been derived from, and should be read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of ICZ N.V. for the years ended December
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

2016 2017 2016112 (2) 201702
In CZK In CZK In EUR In EUR
thousand thousand thousand thousand

Sales revenue 1 465 733 1 670 811 54 220 40 669
Gross profit 619 154 496 932 22 904 18 873
Earnings before interest, taxes, 124 179 33913 4 594 1288
depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA 137)
Depreciation 12 614 13 750 467 522
Amortization 17 907 11 424 662 434
Impairment - - - -
Profit/(loss) from operations 93 658 8 739 3 465 332
Prf;lt.!:.le.f(.)r;.ta.xe; | 91 991 5 087 3403 193
Income tax expense / {benefit) 23428 -711 867 -27
Profit for the year 68 563 | 5 798 2536 220
Net cash 221 565 - 273 765 - 8 200 10719
Equity 373 447 337 792 13 821 13 226

Total assets 862 508 732 165 31921 28 667

{1} The balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2017 has been converted at the CZK/EUR rate prevailing
at the end of respective period as announced by the Czech Naticnal Bank. The rate used for the balance sheet
for the year ended December 31, 2016 was CZK 27,020 = EUR 1,00 and for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2017
was CZK 25,540 = EUR 1,00.

(2) The consolidated income statement has been converted at the CZK/EUR average rate for the years 2017
and 2016. The rate used for the consclidated income statement for the year 2016 was CZK 27,033 = EUR 1,00
and for the year 2017 was CZK 26,330 = EUR 1,00,

(3) EBITDA includes Revenue, Consumed materials, products and services and Change in inventories of
finished goods and work in progress, Labour costs, Other operating incorne and expenses.
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Ratios

2016 2017
Gross margin . 42,2% 46,4%
EBITDA margin | 8,5% 3,2%
EBIT ¢ margin 6,;!% | 0,8%
Profit before tax margin | 6,3% 0,5%
Net profit margin 4,7% 0,5%
Net cash {o equity 59,3% 81,0%
Equity to total assets 43,2% 46,1%

{4) EBIT equals profit/{loss) from operaticns

1.5 Profit/Loss Treatment

According to the Articles of Association of ICZ N.V. the treatment of financial profit or loss is as
follows:

. Each year, the Executive Board will determine, with the approval of the Supervisory Board,
which part of the profit will be transferred to the reserves, The part of the profit remaining
after the reservation above will be distributed as dividend on the Shares.

. Distributions an Shares may be made only up to the amount of the Distributable Equity.

. Distribution of profit will take place after the adoption of the annual accounts evidencing
that such distribution is permitted.

. The Executive Board may decide to pay interim dividend on Shares, That resolution will be
subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board.

. In calculating the amount of any distribution, the Shares held by the Company in its own
capital will not be counted.

. Articles 2:103 2:104 and 2:105 of the Netherlands Civil Code will furthermore apply to
distributions to Shareholders.

1.6 Post-Balance-Sheet Events

No significant events occurred since 31 December 2017 that need to be disclosed in the directors'
report.

1.7 Emplovee Relations

As of December 31, 2017, ICZ Group had 531 employees in employment relationship of which 403
were located in the Czech Republic, 125 in the Slovak Republic, 1 in Netherlands, 1 in Ukraine and

%
[
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1 in the Bosnia and Herzegovina. Additionally, 25 employees work on the basis of working activity
agreements and 66 employees on the basis of work performance agreements.

The following table shows the slight decrease of our employees in employment relationship by
function as of December 31, 2017:

Function Number Number
. o o 2016 2017
Management .. 36 33
Administration ... 83 : 73
Project management _ _ 30 ) 30
Software development S _ 173 , 153
Cther experts 178 o 192
Sales B , ) 25 ... 3t
Services 10 12
Manual workers 6 o2
Total 541 531

ICZ Group is driven by strategy considering that employees are providing the essential talent,
professionalism and energy to fulfil long-term vision, business goals and ambitions. Strategic vision
of ICZ Group in the area of human rescurces is te build long-term partnership with employees based
aon professional relationship full of respect, confidence, mutual communication, respect for equal
opportunities and possibility of professional and career development. The Group strategy puts its
focus both on growing revenues and improving productivity while growing employees
professionalism.

Employer Branding and talent attracting. In 2017, the ICZ Group was working intensively on
project Employer Branding. The main goal of the project was to build the ICZ Group brand as an
Attractive Employer within the ITC sector for different target groups of IT professicnals. Through
specific and focused activities in HR marketing area got the ICZ Group higher level of awareness as
an Attractive Employer not only for young IT talents but also for experienced IT professionals. The
ICZ Group, thanks to the high level of this awareness, has a possibility to meet a sufficient interest
from candidates on labour market to occupy open job positions with specific knowledge, skilis and
experience which is overall not easy to achieve.

Learning and development. In 2017, the I1CZ Group continued with the Internal Development
Centre project meeting the principles of self-learning company. The Centre in question prepares
and carries cut the internal company courses for both hard and soft skills. In 2017, there were
about 37 trainings lead by internal lectors with 374 internal participants.

Another priority in development in 2017 was to deliver special workshops focused on legislative
novelties. In 2017, it was trained about 150 employees in the new kodex or legal conditions specific
area. ICZ Group also continued with tailor made development-programmes for key sales staff
members as well as with practical workshops for project managers to share experience and best
practice. In 2017, there were made 6 development programs with 63 participants.

However, as the skills need updating ever more rapidly, the learning strategy has to deliver the
professional education, training and further development based on long-term and current needs
and perspectives.

Employee Satisfactory Survey. Between April and May 2017, the second run of the Employee
Satisfactory Survey was carried out (the first run was in 2015). The survey was focused on four key
factors of employee satisfaction: Top Management, strategy and vision; Direct Manager; Team
cooperation and Working conditions. ICZ Group is proud, that 85% of employees {438 employees
to be exact) got involved in the Survey and gave their feedback. The results of the Survey showed
the general satisfaction on level of 78% (which is really high level, to be honest). The employees
feel the highest satisfaction in following factors: Direct Manager (87%), Team cooperation (79%)
and Working conditions (78%). Based on the analysis and results was prepared the proposal of
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specific steps, activities and development programme supporting the corporate communication and
cooperation as well as the engagement of middle management.

Well-Being. In 2017 the ICZ Group continued with its endeavour to support flexible, friendly and
well-being working environment and conditions in every branch office. Concept of well-being and
work life balance is long-term vision for employees of the ICZ Group.

Diversity. Within its strategic development priorities, the ICZ Group considers the diversity of its
employees as a positive value, which, in the upshot, increases the performance of each team
member. Keeping this in mind, the project of building and supporting so-calted muiti-generation
company and corporate culture continued in 2017. The main objective of the project is to create
motivating conditions for cooperation of different employee generations (i.e. trainees, juniors,
experts and seniors), on a long-term basis. ICZ Group has been dealing with the diversity topic
systematically since 2016. This has been organized in the way of a programme covering career
management, development and support for specific populations. The ICZ Group chooses its
colleagues not only on the qualifications basis, but it gives an opportunity to a wide range of talents,
as well,

Remuneration and motivation. The remuneration policy and a reward system (bonus policy) for
both technical and sales employees is based on a component principle - basic salary, the variable
part (both paid monthly) and the incentive annua!l bonus {paid yearly) - proved itself and therefore
remained in 2017 unchanged.

Human Resources Policy. The fundamental priorities of Human Resources Strategy have not
changed from last years and make more sense in everything the 1CZ Group does:

. build a depth of professional capability and managerial skills;
. build a performance culture with strong project management orientation;
. build an open, flexible and diverse organisation.

ICZ Group believes that thanks to the continuing qualification, expertise and competency grow,
with deep respect of the workplace environment quality, the equal working conditions, internal
communication, the high level of social responsibility and the involvement of employees in all
company processes, the Group potential will grow constantly.

1.8 Management Policy and Remuneration of
Executive Board and Supervisory Board

Executive Board

The Executive Board is responsible for the day-to-day management of our operations under the
supervision of the Supervisory Board. The Executive Board is required to keep the Supervisory
Board in a timely manner informed in order to allow the Supervisory Board to carry out its task,
consult with the Supervisery Board on important matters and submit certain important decisions to
the Supervisory Board for its approval.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the running of the Company as conducted by
the Executive Board and the Company’s general business affairs. The Supervisory Board shali assist
the Executive Board by giving advice. In performing its duties, the Supervisory Board is required to
act in the interests of the Issuer and its associated business as a whole. The members of the
Supervisory Board are not, however, authorized to represent us in dealings with third parties.
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The remuneration of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of ICZ N.V. amounted to
63 200 EUR in 2017 {61 497 EUR in 20186).

The Executive Board consists of the following members, currently:

Name _ Age Position Member since Term

Pavel Rosendorf 63 Chief Executive Officer October 6, 2014 unfimited*
Bohuslav Cempirek 56  Executive Officer October 6, 2014 ~ unlimited*
Zdenek Jirkovec 64 Executive Officer October 6, 2014 unlimited*

The Supervisory Board is currently composed of the following members:

Anna Hausenblasovd 38  Member

Name Age Position - Member since Term
Jan Muller 67 Member _ July 1, 2008 _ unlimited*
Milog Marek 78 Member , June 18, 2014 untimited*

June 18, 2014 untimited*

*re-appointed on Annual General Meeting on April 25, 2017 for unlimited term

1.9

Expected Course of Business in the
Following Year {Goals for 2018)

The overall ICZ Group business strategy remains the same, i.e. to provide the customers with
customized IT solutions according to the highest level of security standards and service quality,
while maintaining and improving the high productivity through a stable staff of highly qualified
professionals. Using its deep understanding of the customer's businesses, ICZ Group is competent
to supply versatile IT solutions that do enhance customers' competitiveness and security needs. To
accomplish that furthermore, even more effectively, the tasks for coming year are following:

www.icz.nl

Continuing foreign activities expansion. As an essential condition for keeping a steady
economic growth of entire ICZ Group, this goal has to stay as a permanent one. To pay a
preferential attention to the topic in question is a vital necessity, in particular because the
factual progress is slower than needed. Thus, the aim itself remains the same: to turn the
opportunities discovering into real projects in three new territories at least, within 2018,
Apart from new prospecting, where a special attention should be turned to the Arab
countries of the Middle East, India and Bangladesh, the open negotiations should be finalized
for example in Kyrgyzstan, to be specific.

Continuing product portfolio modernization. Regarding the steady economic growth
mentioned above, this task represents a-complementary one to the territorial expansion,
de facto. Even the previous assignment was accomplished in a satisfactory extent, the task
has to stay for the 2018, again. There are following topics planned for further development
within 2018: applications for 'remote healthcare' area; enhancement of the DRG ASSISTANT
capabilities; new eHealth solution EMPATICS intended to suppert a home-treatment of
chronic patients; upgrade of existing ICZ DELINFOS® BADIAN module, namely in terms of
the C2 for the 'dismounted soldier' in Android environment, of its connection onto special
sensors and of capturing full scale of ICZ DELINFOS® abilities; an upgrade of the ICZ
DELINFOS® system onto new MIP-4 Interoperability Standard for the Czech Ministry of
Defence; enhancement of Czech Central Registry of Drivers with necessary new features
acc. to new legislation; migration of Prague Municipal Waste system onto new database
platform; building-up a new Security Operations Centre (SOC). Within the IT Security
products, the LANPCSe should be finalized incl. its readiness for special ciphering algorithms
implementation; another goal should be a building a SOC (Security Operations Centre)
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solution. Selected products of data management and/or logistics branch should be migrated
onto SaaS version. As far as the ATC/ATM systems are regarded, development of ICZ
LETVIS® MIL should be initiated in terms of general support for Military ATM and C2
systems; besides that, a development of URDI (Universal Radar Data Interface) should be
commenced, as well,

. The middle-management development programme. In 2018, the ICZ Group plans to
focus its attention on the Group's middie management, namely in two main fields. The first
one is to strengthen and develop managerial skills, the second one aspires to increase the
middle-management involvement into group-wide strategic activities and priorities. For this
purpose, a long-term development programme called Management Academy will be
prepared. The programme in question will focus on strengthening both basic and advanced
managerial skilis, and the entire middle management of the ICZ Group will take part. In
parallel, both basic and complementary activities will be carried out (regular meetings,
working groups focusing on solving specific topics, etc.) in order to increase the general
awareness of middle management, to strengthen its loyalty - and that way, of course, also
ta develop the overall satisfaction of this important group of employees.

1.10 Risks and Managing the Risks

The management monitors and manages the financial risks refating to the operations through
analyzing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk. The management analyses the risks, and policies implemented to mitigate risk
exposures, regularly. Please refer to consolidated notes, Note 1.5.30, on further information in
respect of risks and managing the risks.

1.11 Identification Data

The ICZ N.V. business address is Strawinskylaan 403, Unit 2 WTC, Tower A, 4th floor, 1077XX
Amsterdam, the Netherlands (telephone number +31205752767 and fax number +31205752726.

RSIN 818538636, VAT No. 34284333, Establishment No. 000013747800, www.icz.ni
1.12 Companies and Business Premises

Czech Republic:

Company Address Contacts
Na hfebenech II 1718/10 tel.: +420 222 271 111
ICZ a.s. (HQ seat) Nusle, 140 GO Praha 4 fax: +420 222 271 112
. Londynské namésti 856/2 tel.: +420 222 272 111
IcZ as. (business premises) Styfice, 639 00 Brno fax: +420 222 272 112
) ) Husova tf, 1373/13 tel.; +420 222 273 111
ICZ 2.s. (business premises) 370 05 Ceské Budjovice fax: +420 222 273 112
1CZ 2.5, (business premises) Beethovenova 179/2 tel.: +420 222 276 511
5 P 746 01 Opava fax: +420 222 276 512
. ) N&m. Miru 2363/10 tel.: +420 222 275 111
ICZ a.s. (business premises) 301 00 Pizef fax: +420 222 275 112
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Company

ICZ a.s. (business premises)
S.ICZ a.s. (HQ seat)

S.ICZ a.s. (business premises)

Amaic Technologies a.s.
(HQ seat}

Bezpeénd ulice a.s. (HQ seat)

Expert & Partner Engineering
CZ, a.s. (HQ seat)

DELINFO, spol. s.r.0. (HQ seat)
ALES, s.r.0. (HQ seat)
Nadaéni fond ICZ (HQ seat)

ICZ Invest a.s. (HQ seat)

Address

Kostnickd 646/6
674 01 Tfebit

Na hfebenech II 1718/10
Nusle, 140 00 Praha 4

Husova tF. 1373/13
370 05 Ceské Budsjovice

Na hfebenech 11 1718/10Q
Nusle, 140 00 Praha 4

Na hfebenech II 1718/10
Musle, 140 00 Praha 4 *)
Na hiebenech 11 1718/1Q
Nusle, 140 00 Praha 4
Londynské namésti 2/856
Styfice, 639 00 Brno

Na hiebenech II 1718/10
Nusle, 140 00 Praha 4

Na hiebenech 11 1718/10
Nusie, 140 00 Praha 4

Na hfebenech II 1718/10
Nusie, 140 00 Praha 4 **)
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Contacts

tel.: +420 222 276 111
fax: +420 222 276 112

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

tel.: +420 222 273 111
fax: +420 222 273 112

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

tel.: +420 222 272 777
fax: +420 222 272 112

tel.: +420 383 321 105
fax: +420 383 327 768

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

tel.: +420 222 271 111
fax: +420 222 271 112

*} The address was valid until March 31, 2017; the date when the merger of Bezpefna ulice a.s. and Amaic Technoiogies
a.s. was published into Commercial Register

**) The address is valid from December 21, 2017, when the company has been established

Slovak Republic:

“-“witrl, H“ o Wﬁ =

Company
ICZ Slovakia a. s. (HQ seat)

ICZ Slovakia a. s.
{business premises)

ICZ Slovakia a. s.
{business premises)

ICZ Slovakia a. s.
(business premises)

ICZ Slovakia a. s.
(business premises)

ALES a. s. (HQ seat)

ALES a. s. (business premises)
ALES a. s. (business premises)
ALES a. s. (business premises)
ALES a. s. (business premises)

D.ICZ Slovakia a. s. (HQ seat)

D.ICZ Slovakiz a. s.
(business premises)

www.icz.nl

Address

Soblahovska 2050
911 G1 Trendin

Balkan 505/8
860 01 Zvolen

Necpalska 243/30
G971 01 Prievidza

Vojtecha Tvrdého 790/13
010 01 Zilina

DruZstevna 5
031 01 Liptovsky Mikulas ***)}

Soblahovskd 2050

911 01 Trencin

044 42 Kosické Olsany 187 9)
Popradska 57

040 11 Kosice - Z3pad °9)

DruZstevna 4
031 01 Liptovsky Mikulas

Balkan 505/8
960 01 Zvolen

Karadzi¢ova 8/A
821 08 Bratistava @°°)

Soblahovskd 2050
911 01 Trendin

ol
wi

Contacts

tel.: +421 326 523 544
fax: +421 326 523 506

tel.: +421 455 368 057

* tel.: +421 326 582 580

fax: +421 326 521 941

tel.: +421 557 998 032
fax: +421 556 717 587

tel.: +421 557 998 032
fax: +421 556 717 587

tel.: +421 445 522 196
fax: +421 445 523 895

tel.: +421 255 422 385

**x) The address was valid until May 31, 2017, when the operation in guestion was closed
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°) The address was valid until March 31, 2017, when the property in guestion was sold
22} The address is valid from May 1, 2017, from when the premises have been rented

@99} On March 3, 2018, the company seat was moved to Scblahovska 2050, 911 01 Trenéin

Poland:

Company Address Contacts

ul. Francuska, nr. 34,

ICZ Polska s.p.z.0. {HQ seat) 40-028 Katowice

Ukraine:
Company Address Contacts
- o Kiyevskiy Shiyakh 1d-2 Tel: +38 (044) 221-1880
ICZ Ukraine (HQ seat) 083 03 Boryspil, Ukraine Fax: +38 (067) 231-2832
Bosnia and Herzegovina:
Company Address Contacts

Kralja Petra I Karadorevica br.98a  Tel: +387 62 343 822

I€Z BH A.D. (HQ seat) Banja Luka, Bosnia Herzegovina

Amsterdam, March 29, 2018

The Executive Board

S SO
7 \7 e

Pavel Rosendorf Zdenek Jirkovec

Bohuslav Cempirek
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ial

Poszition as at 31 December 2017

{Before appropriation of the result)

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets

Long term receivables

Financiai Investment

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Total non-cunrent asseﬂtrs' o o 7 7

fféde éhd other receivabrlﬂe'sr 7

Current income tax assets

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

e

T
Note  CZK'000
'NON-CURRENT A SSETS

22629

77468

e
et

175272

22629

62 614

12663
1000

1000

173101

22

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

14

23
24

10175
242 433
e
S 17291
e

- 556893

9851

413 778

12 690
24 035

221565

" 689 407

" 862508

The notes on pages 35 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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. 2017,,.,.....,.._. 20154“

" ' Note CZK ooo czK '000

EQUITY '

26 119790 119790
27 (111789) (108 590)
329791 362 247

Issued capltal '

Reserves

Retamed earnmgs - )

Equitv att nbutable to equrty holders of the company o 337 792 373 447

Non controllmg mterest
Totai equ:ty 337 792 373 447

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES i
Deferred Income tax liabilities 14 4475 ise1

Total non-current fiabilities ~ aa75 3861

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables o - 28 3059%7 406 576
Current lncome tax hamlltles 14 2 771 433
29 81170 78 191

Other llabllltles “

Total current liabilities 389898 485200

732165 862508

TOTAL EQUITY AND

The notes on pages 35 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1.2 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income Tor the Year Ended
31 December 2017

Revenue

2017 2016
Note CZK '000 CZK'000

1070811 1465733

' (8?8 257)
31678
'""‘"(471 482) (490 223)
N (13 750) (12 614)
(11 424)'”" (17 907)

23729 5144
(15 zss)""" (9 895)
Pmﬁt rmm mnmumg opéramns e e e e e - s 739. 93 sss

Change in |nver|tor|es off“nls hed goods and work in progress
Labour cost

Deprematlon

W@ N

A mortization

Otheroperatlngmcome” e V

HE L S L
Ll =

Othar ogeratmg expense

Finance ¢ costs S 12 (1 038)' ' (1 178)
Other Fnance mcome (expense) 13 (2 614) (489)

mcomemx{expense) /beneﬂt e e A e i - (23 42 8)

5 798 68 563

Other comprehenswe income (expense)

Items that wull never be reclassf |ed to prof :t or Ioss 7 - -

Items that are or mav be reclassfled to proflt or Ioss

Foreign operations - foreign currency transtation differences (3 199) 105

:i;:e ot:::(prehenswe mcome (eipetlse) for the period, net t)f (3 199) 105
Tutal cnmprehenswe income (expense) fnr the perlod S h 2 599 7 ) 687 668
profit attributable to i e e e e 4 4+ et s

Owners i Company PR
Non contro”mg mterests L

Total cnmprehenswe mcome (expense) attnhuta e

Owners of the company 68 668
Non controlnng mterests - -
' 2599 68 668

Eammgspershare(CZK) e e i e e 5 8 4 B e e 1197 23'3 s

The notes on pages 35 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1.4 Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows for
the Year Ended 21 December 2017

Prof!t for the year

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Encome tax expense recogmsed in profst or !oss

Deprematlon and amortlsatlon of non current assets
12,13
10,11

Interest mcome and expenses

Lass (ga:n) on the sai‘e of nan- current assets

Increase (decrease) in aIIowances for assets and prowsmns

Ad]ustments far other non cash tra nsactlons )

ey
(16 677)

CZK 000

. 5 T
(71 o

: 25 e
29)

{3 e
945_.__._._..__..__.

Net operating cash flow before changes in working capita

Decrease (xnc rease) in trade and other recewables

Decrease (mcrease) in mventorles

Decrease (mc rease) in ﬂther assets

Increase (dec rease) in current i!abllztles

Income taxes pald

Net cash generated Bv operatmg actmt;es o T

21

28,29
14

11 355

'i"s' e
' (1 231)""'
6744
i (81 436)
(2 468)
sssoo'

2016
CZK '000

68 563
"'ié'"&'zé
30 521

(29)

(93)
4326
(45 605)

81111

(133 628)
4923
6801
42741
29 505)

" (27 557)

'cAsH p[__ows FROM IWEST:NG ACTIVITIES N

Ach|5|t|on of sub5|d|ar|es

Payments fDr non current assets

Proceeds from the sale of non- current assets

IntErest recewed

s
e

Net cash used :nmvestmg activlt:es o S o '

CASHFLO

Interest pald

Dmdends pald

NCING ACTIVITIES

(11 o
16 616.....‘._
32

. 5055”

a 010)
'{15 175)
170
50

" (15965)

Cash generated bv (used |n) fmancmg actnntles T

(38 340)
| (38343)

'Net" effeet -ot' currency treﬁs!atioe on cash equivalent.s

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF PERIOD S

CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS, END OF PERIOD

(3113)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7 Ts2200

273 765

1)
(27 060)
(27 081)
- 284
(70 319)

291 884
221 565

The notes on pages 35 fo 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1} Other non-cash operations include mainly internally generated intangible assets and change in amount due

to/from customers under construction contracts.
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1.5 NMotes o the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the Year Endad
21 December 2017

1.5.1 General Information

ICZ N.V. (“"ICZ" or “the Company™) is a company that was incorporated in the Netherlands as
a public company with limited liability on October 2, 2007. The address of its registered office is
at Strawinskylaan 403, Unit 2 WTC, Tower A, 4" Floor, 1077XX Amsterdam, Netherlands.
The object of ICZ N.V. is to act as a holding company for the entire group. These consolidated
financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the "Group™).

These financial statements were approved by the Executive Board and authorised for issue effective
on March 29, 2018.

With reference to the separate profit and loss account of the Company, use has been made of the
exemption pursuant to Section 402 of Book 2 of the Nethertands Civil Code.

The information about ownership structure of the group is shown in Note 1.5.32. The information
about issued capital of ICZ N.V. is shown in Note 1.5.26. The initial issued capital of 1CZ N.V.
consisting of 45,000 shares with nominal value of EUR 1,00 per share was paid in cash by Bohuslav
Cempirek on October 2, 2007. In November 2007, the former shareholders of ICZ a.s. exchanged
all their shares of ICZ a.s. for 4,455,000 shares of ICZ N.V. with no significant change in their
proporticnal ownership interests. There was no change in the operations or business of ICZ a.s. and
its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Group are project activities in information systems and system
integration, consultancy and advisory activities in information systems, provision of IT advisory
services and the development and sale of software (sale of ready-made programs on the basis of
contracts with their writers or development of made-to-order programs).

Subsidiaries and non-consolidated entities
The information about group entities is shown in Note 1.5.31.

Nadaéni fond ICZ, an endowment fund, is not consolidated as the ownership interest is immaterial,
both alone and in aggregate to the financial position, performance and cash flows of the Group. The
information about Nadagni fond ICZ is included in Note 1.5.20. There is no risk associated with the
interests in the unconsolidated entity neither has the Group any obligation to provide financial
support to the entity.

The changes in the group are described in Note 1.5.31.

The addresses of registered offices and principal places of business of the Company’s subsidiaries
{the Group) are described in Note 1.5.31.
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1.5.2 Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and in accordance with Book 2
Title 9 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal
accounting policies are set out below,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Czech Crowns (‘CZK").

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements and have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

The consoclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (together referred as “the Group”).

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at
their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of
acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition)
is credited to profit and joss in the period of acquisition. The interest of non-controlling shareholders
is based on the non-controlling’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilfities recognised.
Subsequently, any losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling
intarest are allocated against the interests of the parent company.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlied by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. When necessary, the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions eliminated on_consolidation

Any intra-group balances and transactions, any gains and losses or income as well as any expenses
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign currency

Functional currency

Functional currency of the Company is Euro (EUR). Functional currency of the subsidiaries is Czech
Crown, except for ICZ Slovakia a.s., D.ICZ Slovakia a.s. and ALES a.s. whose functicnal currency
is Euro, ICZ Polska Sp. z 0.0. whose functional currency is Polish Zloty, ICZ Ukraine whose functional
currency is UAH (Ukrainian Hryvnia) and ICZ Bosnia & Herzegovina whose functional currency is
BAM (Konvertibilna Marka).
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Presentation currency

The Group presentation currency is the Czech Crown (CZK). The Group has selected this

presentation currency in order to be in compliance with the users of its financial statements because
their economic decisions are based on information expressed in CZK.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or ioss on monetary items is the
difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted
for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retransiated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated to CZK at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are transiated to CZK at exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are recognised directly in
a separate component of Other comprehensive income - Foreign operations - foreign currency
translation difference. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount
in the transiation reserve is transferred to profit or loss,

Cash flows of foreign operations are translated into CZK at exchange rates approximating the
fareign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

The following exchange rates were used:

B T T
R G g TR 0 D SEmIIEERL
R R e

31 December 20:

closing rate " average rate for the 12 month period

 EUR/ C2ZK 27,020 27,033
T
ARy @K T
RAMpEK Ty g e G S

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted by manner of using the purchase method.
The cost of the business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date
of exchange) of the present value of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination, The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinations are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal
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groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to
sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as other operating income.

Contingent consideration is measured at fair value, with subseguent changes recognised in profit
or loss.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the
non controlling’'s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

In 2016, ICZ a.s. established an endowment fund named Nadadni fond ICZ and deposited
CZK 1 000 thousand in its capital which was recorded as an investment at cost.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group
and are presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent shareholders' equity.

Changes in parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transaction with owners in their capacity as owners). Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received shall be recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the parent.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings and diluted earnings per share for each period are calculated equally - by dividing
the net profit for a given period by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during that
period,

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as
an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment {oss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goadwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar atlowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are accomplished;

. the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
buyer;

) the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract. The stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:

. installation fees are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the installation,
determined as the proportion of the total time expected to install that has elapsed at the
reporting date;

. servicing fees included in the price of products sold are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the servicing for the product sold, taking into
account historical trends in the number of services actually provided on past goods sold;
and

. revenue from time and material contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour
hours are delivered and direct expenses are incurred.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in accordance with the accounting policy outlined
below.

Royalties

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement. Royalties determined on a time basis are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
pericd of the agreement. Royalty arrangements that are based on production, sales and other
measures are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Dividend and interest revenue

Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established.

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probabie will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date,
measured as the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that they have been agreed with the customer.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediatety.

The above described policy is applied to all Group’s projects.

Leasing

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter intoc operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with
the grant. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset.

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity, or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the first day of the accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the reporting date.

www.icz.nl 40



iICZ

Annual Report 2017

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised for the
following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that
it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not
recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied {o temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax labilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or servicas, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recegnised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use,

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged by manner of writing-off the cost of assets, other than land and properties
under construction, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected usefut lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Subseguent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount the cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant
and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs are recognised in the profit or loss as expenses at the time they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Tangible fixed assets costing less than CZK
40 thousand are recognised in profit or l0ss in the year that they are acquired. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.

The costs of improving fixed assets increase their acquisition cost. Repairs and maintenance costs
are charged directly to profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are foilows:

(fategnrv of a'ssets' ' N ' ' ”2017 o ' 2016
Buildings A struchuran T [ 20 yeérs R . 30 years
Machinery and equipméﬁf B e . . yeafs” - » . 4 years
Furniture, fixtures and other o o o 2-6 years‘ T 2 - 6 years

Depreciation methods, usefu! lives and residual values (if not insignificant) are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life, amortisation method and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year-end, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the

development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of intangible assets, other than goodwill, unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

N
]
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Catogory of ass.ets o % RIS | . . . ...2.017 .. .. | : R 20i6"
Intangible assets generated internally 3-5 years 3 years

Amortisation methods, usefu! lives and residual values (if not insignificant) are reviewed at each
financial year-end.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that
can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default
or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables and held-to-maturity investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables and
held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified. Receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables and held-to-
maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probabiiity of default,
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recegnised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the fair
value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisions
attributable to time value are reflected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security Increases
and the increase can be reiated objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventory, construction contracts and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

In respect of the goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses are recognised
in profit or loss,

Impairment losses recognised in respect of the cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (groups of units) and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of the goodwill is not reversed. In respect of the other assets,
impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and {iabilities, are classified as held-for-
sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is aliocated first to goodwill,
and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated
to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, which continue to be measured in accordance
with the Group's other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-
sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer
amortised or depreciated.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method
most appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first-in-
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
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surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliabiy,

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

The Group initially recognises foans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All other
financial instruments are recognised initialty on the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

The Group derecognises a financial tiability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
canceiled or expire,

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recagnition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legai right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
and trade and other payables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment iosses.

Cash and cash eqguivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares and shares options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Repurchase, disposal of share capital (own shares)

When share capital recognized as an equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which linked directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a deduction from
equity. Repurchased shares are classified as own shares and are presented in Reserves. When own
shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in
equity, and the resuiting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share premium.
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Net financial income (expenses)
Interest income

Interest income comprises interest income on funds invested (bank interest). Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Interest expense

Interest expense is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate method.

Other financial income and expenses

Other financial income and expenses comprise foreign exchange gains and losses that are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and bank charges.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows is presented from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss
is adjusted for the effects of non-cash transactions, accruals and deferrals, and items of income or
expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

1.5.3 Adoption of new and revised standards

List of new EU IFRS Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published Standards
(as at 17 January 2018) that are not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for caiculating
impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries
forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 35.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
adoption permitted.

At 1 January 2018, the Company's financia! instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables.

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’
{ECL) model. This will require considerable judgement about how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis.

The new impairment model will apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
except for investments in equity instruments, and to contract assets.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances will be measured on either of the following bases:
- 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and
- lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a financial asset at the reporting date has
increased significantly since initial recognition and 12-month ECL measurement applies if it has not.
An entity may determine that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased significantly if the
asset has low credit risk at the reporting date.
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The Group believes that impairment losses are not likely to significantly change for assets in the
scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model.

The Group is currently performing more detailed analysis for trade and other receivables and expect
to calculate estimated ECLs based on actual credit loss experience over the past seven years.
Exposures will be segmented based on common credit risk characteristics such as credit risk grade,
geographic region and industry of the customers.

The ECLs for the cash and cash equivalents is considered to be not significant as the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The application of the new standard is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. Earlier application is permitted.

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue,
IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

The Group will adopt a five-step model to determine when to recognise revenue, and at what
amount. The new model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an entity transfers
control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled.
Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognised:

* overtime, in a manner that depicts the entity’s performance; or
= atapointin time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.

IFRS 15 also establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to provide qualitative and
quantitative disclosures which provide useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a
customer.

The Group launched an IFRS 15 implementation project. As at the date of the authorisation of the
financial statements, the Group completed the gap and impact analysis and carried out calculation
of the expected impact of the new standard and is in the process of implementation of an IT solution.
The main results of the project are as follows:

i, Sales of goods

For the sale of goods, revenue is currently recognized when the Group transferred the
significant rewards and ownership of the goods to the buyer. Revenue is recognised at this
point provided that the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of the
consideration is probable and there is no continuing management involvement with the
goods.

Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods.

The Group's assessment does not indicate any changes in this area.

if. Rendering of services

The Group is involved in performing services such as installations, servicing and other IT
services. Revenue is currently recognised using the stage-of-completion method.

Under IFRS 15, the total consideration in the service contracts will be allocated to all services
based on their stand-alone selling prices. The services provided by the Group also generally
meet the condition for over time revenue recognition.

Based on the Group’s assessment, the approach with exception of the matters described
under construction contracts are broadly similar. Therefore, the Group does not expect the
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application of IFRS 15 to result in significant differences in the timing of revenue recognition
for these services,

i, Consfruction contracts

The Group provides to its customers complex IT solutions which are currently accounted for
as construction contracts. Revenue and cost are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the reporting date, measured as the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract
costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have
been agreed with the customer.

The Group's approach under IFRS 15 is generally expected to be consistent with the current
practice with the following exceptions:

a) Combination of contracts - IFRS 15 provides moere guidance in the area of combination
of contracts. The Group noted that in some cases it concluded multiple contracts for
one performance obligation. In such case, impiementation of the new standard would
lead to their combination. However, as of the date of the transition, no contracts were
identified which would require additional combination.

b) Identification of performance obligations - current IFRS include limited guidance on
identifying whether a transaction contains separately identifiable components. The new
standard introduces comprehensive guidance on identifying separate components
which applies to all revenue-generating transactions. The Group assessed the complex
IT projects previously recognized under construction contract guidance and noted that
in the majority of cases, there will be only one performance obligation as the goods or
services provided in the contracts significantly modify or customize or are significantly
modified or customized by, one or more of the other goods or services. Furthermore,
the Group provides a significant service of integrating the goods or services with other
goods or services promised in the contract. Based on the Group’s analysis, no retained
earnings impact at the transition date is expected.

¢) Qver time revenue recognition — construction contracts and contracts for rendering
services are currently accounted for under the stage-of-completion method. IFRS 15 is
expected to result in a broadly similar profile of revenue but it introduces new criteria
to determine when revenue should be recognized over time. The Group noted during
its implementation project that for some contracts previously recognized over time, the
new criteria may not be automatically met. This is mainly the case of those construction
contracts when the entity does not have an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The Group carried out legal assessment of its contracts
and general legal environment in which it operates and confirmed that it does have the
enforceable right for the majority of its projects. The estimated impact on retained
earnings at 1 January 2018 of projects, which do not meet the over time criteria and
which are currently recognized over time, is not considered to be material.

The Group further assessed other areas of potential impact compared to the current guidance (such
as principal vs. agent, customer opticns, loss-making contracts, etc.} and does not expect any
impact on retained earnings at 1 January 2018. The Group will continue to closely monitor all new
contracts with respect to this areas.

iv. Transition

The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018}. As a result,
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the Group will not apply the requirements of IFRS 15 to the comparative period presented. The
actual impact of adopting the standard at 1 January 2018 may change because:

» as of the date of authorisation of financial statements for issue the Group is still in the
implementation phase of the new IT solution;

= the new accounting policies are subject to change until the Company presents its first financial
statements that include the date of initial application.

IFRS 16 leases

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier
application is permitted if the entity alsc applies IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The Standard eliminates the current
dual accounting model for lessees and instead requires companies to bring most leases on-balance
sheet under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases.

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. For such contracts, the new
model requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated and the liability accrues interest. This will result in a front-loaded pattern of expense
for most leases, even when the lessee pays constant annual rentals.

The new Standard introduces a number of limited scope exceptions for lessees which include:
* leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no purchase options, and
= {eases where the underlying asset has a low value (‘small-ticket’ leases).

Lessor accounting, however, shall remain largely unchanged and the distinction between operating
and finance leases will be retained.

The Group is currently assessing concrete impacts of the new standards, however the Group expects
potential increase of assets and liabilities as a result of the recognition of most leases on the balance
sheet and classification impact on the statement of profit and loss. The Group plans to adopt the
new standard on the required effective date.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, Early
application is permitted. This interpretation is not yet endorsed by the EU.

IFRIC 22 provides requirements about which exchange rate to use in reporting foreign currency
transactions {such as revenue transactions) when payment is made or received in advance and
clarifies that the transaction date is the date on which the company initially recognises the
prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions involving
multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a separate transaction date.

The Group does not expect that the Interpretation, when initially applied, will have material impact
on the financial statements as the Group uses the exchange rate on the transaction date for the
initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early
application is permitted. This interpretation is not yet endorsed by the EU.

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax
authorities, whilst also aiming to enhance transparency. Under IFRIC 23, the key test is whether it
is probable that the tax authority will accept the entity’s chosen tax treatment. If it is probable that
the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment then the tax amounts recorded in the
financial statements are consistent with the tax return with no uncertainty reflected in measuring
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current and deferred taxes. Otherwise, the taxable income (or tax loss), tax bases and unused tax
losses shall be determined in a way that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, using
either the single most likely amount or expected (sum of probability weighted amounts) value. An
entity must assume the tax authority will examine the position and will have full knowledge.

The Group does not expect that the Interpretation, when initially applied, wili have materiai impact
on the financial statements as the Group does not have material uncertain tax positions.

New standards effective in 2017

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs as of 1 January 2017 that have no
material impact on the Group:

v  Amendments to IAS 7 (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lJanuary 2017)

* Amendments to IAS 12 (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017):
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

1.5.4 Critical Accounting Judgmeants and Key of Estimation
Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
the current and future periods,

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that
management has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting poticies and that have the
maost significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The major judgment applied in revenue recognition is related to the percentage of completion of
construction contracts which is set by the Group based on the estimated cost to complete of the
individual construction contracts.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the date of statement of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Recoverability of internally-generated intangible assets

During the year, the management considered the recoverability of its internally-generated
intangible assets. The projects continue to progress in a very satisfactory manner, and customer
reaction has reconfirmed the directors’ previous estimates of anticipated revenues from the
projects.
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Impairment of goodwill

To determine whether the goodwill is impaired or not, it requires to estimate the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

1.5.5 Revenue

The Group considers its business to be one segment in terms of operating segments. However, the
Group's revenue can be broken down based on industry practice as:

Sales of Goods and Services by Geographical Region
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Slovakra T Other' ‘I'utal

s Republ;c ot e

e 2015 T '”iozé e TTT™
, S
o
69630
127526
e
e

176313
1 465 733

514536
109778
40029
52 290
21104
Flnance 45418

Government D 691073 11030t
e 9252'""' L 396...,,._._.
e T SR
T
e T LT
o ssio i 617,,.....,_._.‘_.. .
Other o044t 139720 1345' Ta082 6830

fp 2 e

S T
40488
88662

Healthcare
Te!ecom
Manufacturmg

tilties .
60 958

108617
1070811

The Group is using IDC service structure as a basis for its revenue analysis. IDC is the premier
global provider of market intelligence, advisory services, and events for the information technology,
telecommunications, and consumer technology markets.

1.5.8 Consumed Material, Products and Services
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1.5.7 Change in Inveniories of Finished Goods and Work
in Progress

NES
31691
31678

1.5.8 Labour Cost

31 De 6

S salarles and other empioyee benefits T T 357644 D 372 880

Mandatory state managed socual and health insurance " 113838 117 343
Total ) T ot

The Company did not provide any post-employment benefits, share-based payments, or termination
benefits.

31 December 017 T A December 2016
Depremanon ofproperty, plant and equment T . 13 750 o 12 614
" 137s0 S 12514

?otal deprec:atlon

A mortlsatlon of |ntang|b|e assets T o 1 14 24 o 17 907

Tgta| amnrtlsatmn . S 11 424 e 17 §ﬁ7

In 2017 and 2016, the entity did not incur any research and development costs that were
immediately expensed. All development activities are either part of current customer projects, or
they are capitalized as other intangible assets.

1.5.10 Qther Operating Income

”(_";,—ants P T S s 755ﬂ e - o

b roceads fram the 5,3|e of ﬁxed assets amj mater|a| e e e 4115 o e e 170

Compensatton from the |nsurer e 40 T 929

Sundry operatmg mcome - e e 5 313 e 4045
Proceeds from the 5a!e ofassetg he|d for ga|e e e e < 1 2500 S

Other operating income from grants for the period ended 31 December 2017 consisted of grant
which was realized by DELINFO, spol. s r.o.
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1.5.11 Other Operaling Expenses
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1.5.14 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises:
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Most of taxab!e prof:t |s generated :n the Czech Repubilc and therefore 19 00% of the tax rate is
used in the tax reconciliation.
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The effect of expenses that aren’t deductible comprise permanently tax non-deductible expenses
and research and development expenses which decrease the tax base.

The following tax rates were used in individual entities:

T2018
T T T ettt
e e
e r et
T

Bosnia a Herzegovina T N o 10

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) arise from the following:

G utstanding
Property, Provisions social Tax losses
plant and and security and brought Other Total
equipment allowances health forward
insurance

Balance at 1151 3299 2373 519 7 695 12 735
31 Dec 2015 { )
Movement in 2016
(including currency (2710} (2 276} (907) 1140 (1 583} (6 336)
translation effect)

Defarred tax
liability at (3861} - - - - (3861)
31 Dec 2016

Deferred tax
assat at - 1023 1466 1659 6112 10 260
31 Dec 2016

Balance at
2 & 399
31 Dec 2016 {3 861) 1023 1 466 1659 611

Movement in 2017

{including currency (614) 6057 (1 466) 3124 (2123) 4978
translation effect)

Deferred tax

liability at {4 475} - - - - (4 475)
31 Dec 2017

Deferred tax
asset at “ 7 080 - 4783 3 989 15852
31 Dec 2017

Balance at

- 11 377
31 Dec 2017 (4 475) 7 080 4783 3 089 3

The remaining unrecognised deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2017 amount to CZK 14 705
thousand (2016: CZK 21 035 thousand). It arises from the Tax loses brought forward and can be
recognised from 2017 to 2024.
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Current tax assets and liabilities

Current income taxes are pa:d by the Group companles on a nhon-consolidated basis.

51 beoember 2017 31 Decernber 2016

Cur;—entta;esre S b|e - . et - 1 3 229 - E— 12 s dﬂ
rem; taxespayable e e A e 1 577 i S 433

The current taxes receivable includes the advances for corporate income tax which the Group
companies paid based on prior years income tax returns, net of income tax expense of companies
with a lower tax expense than advances paid.

The current taxes payable includes the income tax liability net of advances paid of cormpanies with
a higher tax expense than advances paid.

1.5.13 Earnings per Share

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

Basic and dijuted earmngs per share are therefore equal.

cember 2017 31 December 2016
Profit / {loss) for the period (CZK thousand) attributable to
the owners of the company

5798 68 563

2936 756
o 23 35

Waghted average number ofshares (pcs) ) 936 756‘”” '
Earmngs per share (CZK) e e N 1 oy

1.5.15 Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost

Land, Hachmery Furniture,
buildings and and fixtures and Total
structures equipment other

Balance at 31 1oo 337 116 734' 2842 219013

e R et
Additions ' 731'““""”11 793"""””” 383 120957
ReC’aSSlFCat'On tO ASSEtS he[d for Sa'e T . (9 935 T T o - o (9 935)
s s e esr
i die T e s
e Garsiion eﬁect - R EE T e 151),
ot e B SR
e e assaT 2 s
B S B ams s e o0 9°7A

Currency translatlon effect

Ul
s
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Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Ba1ance at 31 December 2915 et e e e e i e

Currency trans|at|on effect et e et e e 8 A s

Additions

Reclassﬂ’catmn to Assets held for sale e

Dlsposals

Balancs 3t 31 Dacambar 2015 e R 1 i i

Cur{ency tran5|at|gn effect

tand,
buildings and
structures

3950

2828

(2 72)

e
(1263)

Balance at 31 December 2017

Machinery
and
equi pment

262

. 8458
(2 447)

111 346

13509

" .107 634

107 385

Annual Report 2017

Furniture,
fixtures and
other

Total
908 '143 74s
ey
206 12614
. 4{2 447)
R
e
S ol

Depreciation is recorded on line Depreciation in Profit and loss account in the total amount of
CZK 13 750 thousand (2016: CZK 12 614 thousand).

Carrying amount

i at 31 v 2015 e e e s e e e o

Balance at 31 December 2016 T

5 1 0 1 1

Machinery
and
equipment

12 443

Land,
buildings and
structures

Fumiture,
fixtures and
other

Total

71165

63 935

39 916

The Group did not capitalise any borrowing costs during 2017 and 2016.

For detail disclosure on Assets held for sale refer to Note 1.5.25.

1.5.17 Goodwill

Balance at 31 December 2015

Add,t,ons from new acqwg,t,on et ek e o 1 S L 5 1 1 0 1 0 1 1 L S

Recogmsed |mpa|rment Ioss

Recogmsed |mpa|rment Ioss

ga|ance at 31 December 2017 e e 8 11 b 1 P 3 5 5 B 188 S8 e 2 e s e

21457
TR

22629

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to individual cash-generating units.
Carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to cash-generating units ("CGU") that are significant

individually or in aggregate are as follows:

1CZ Group excluding ICZ Slovakia a.s.

www.icz.nl
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The acquired companies Exprit s.r.o. in the Czech Republic and Bezpednd ulice a.s. were fully
integrated into the company ICZ a.s. and its subsidiaries based in the Czech republic. Therefore the
retated goodwill is assessed at the CGU of ICZ Group excluding operations of ICZ Slovakia a.s.

Goodwill assigned to ICZ Slovakia a.s. is assessed on the basis of the recoverable amount of this
CGU.

The recoverable amounts of both cash-generating units were based on their value in use which use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and a discount rate of 12,68% per annum for 2017 {(2016: 10,22%). This rate
was determined on the basis of the calculation of WACC, which took into consideration especially
risk-free interest rate, expected market growth of ICT, expected inflation etc. The fair value
measurement was categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs in the valuation technique
used.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows:

- B N —— —

Terﬁ;ii.rié.l value gr
Budgeted EBITDA growth

. 0f|:| 3 yea,’-;) R, 1’00%

Sensitivity analysis of the value in use as at 31 December 2017.

The crucial elements influencing the value in use of assets within individual units responsible for
generating cash flows are: operating profit plus depreciation and amortization {known as EBITDA)
and the discount rate.

The effects of impairment sensitivity (whether and if so, what amount would be accounted for} in
relation to changes in these factors are presented below:

no impact

no impact no impact

Discount rate

no impact noimpact

n.o impacf

¥
i

(PRI
.
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1.5.18 Other Intangible Asseis

Cost

Other

Intangible assets

generated internally intangible Total

assets

e ""69"4
(6)
34 252
2695
"491 645
CUI’I’EI’]CY translatlon ef’fect V S (1 781) (2 214)
e e e e e 2 5 2 7 , 333 2 Ll
e e s

Disposals -
Baiance at 31 December 2017 . 454 271 - 515 531

31 December 2015
Currencytranslatlon eﬁect
Addltms )

Balam:e at ~ December 2016 A L S e 8 ,429 780. e

The amount of expenditures recognised in the carrying amount of CZK 29 914 thousand in Intangible
assets generated internally, represents the internally generated software under construction.

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Other
intangible Total
assets

Intangible assets
generated internally

Balance at 31 December 201“" “350 see

Currency translat|on effect e e e e e e e e (41 ) e <o e (5) vt e e (47)

i : ’ :
s S TR R 7T Katur eI
e e 695
T Decemberzo1s — i 372 T et 429 —
Currencytranslatlon eﬁect e e (372).._._.‘,_....... (365) S (737)
Additions S 7 349 o 4075 B 11 424
i v e
Balame at 31 December 2017 e

Carrying amount

Other
intangible Total
assets

Intangible assets
generated internally

Balance At 31 D ety G S 38603 R 7 625 45223
Balance ot 31 Decermbar 351 T 57 762,.,,.,,, ....4 352 - '52' 514

Intangible assets generated internally represent primarily results of development that meet the
conditions noted in respective accounting policy under Note 1.5.2 and Nete 1.5.4. The most
significant items recorded as of the year end are SW AMIS*HD in carrying amount of CZK 32 982
thousands and remaining amortization period of 5 years and SW Letvis of the net carrying amount
of CZK 29 914 thousands that will be put in use in 2018 and will be amortized over period of 5
years. The Group develops software that is sold to the customers.

Other intangible assets contains predominantly other software.
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1.2.19 Llong tarm Receivables

Balance at 31 December 2017 1-5 years 5+ years Total

Tradeandotherrecewables e 3 S 43 1 1 o e 60 55 T 50_56

The amount of Long term Trade receivables consist of payment schedule relating to one project. The
amount will be paid monthly. Last payment is due in November 2019.

1.5.20 Financial Investment

In 2016, the ICZ a.s. company established an endowment fund named Nada&ni fond ICZ. Its mission
is supporting of various charitable activities and generally beneficial goals. The deposit to its capital
was CZK 1 000 thousand. Nadacni fond ICZ is not involved into the consolidation group.

1.5.21 Inventories

"""31 December 2017 " 31 December 2016

g
Ranpbnd

TotalgrOSSmVentory bt e e vt e S — R, 13 323

Write-downs to net realisable vaiue ST T 3y
: AR e

Total

Write-downs of inventory to net realisable value during the period ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 in the amount of CZK 907 thousand and CZK (2 853) thousand, respectively, have been
recognised in other operating expenses.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 was CZK 103 844 thousand and CZK 114 694 thousand, respectively.

1.5.22 Trade and Other Receivableg

" 31 December 2017 " 31 December 2016
e ety i

e
R s

Construction contracts in progress

Short term advances paid
e , s
Gross Short-tarmm FaaABIGs e L

i
g

Allowances

L
]
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Trade receivables ageing

r 2016
295 649
e
L e e

1 December

Dece
173914 '

Total receivables overdue

Chanage of allowances

‘E'_')ha ST liewane esto Tra derecewables e £ o £ e 4 e e

Totalchangema"owances . e g S

The increase resp. decrease in allowances against receivables has been recognised in other
operating expenses,

The average credit period on sales of goods is 60 days. Provisions are established on the basis of
an ageing analysis - receivables past due from 180 to 365 days are provisioned at 50 percent,
receivables past due by greater than 365 days are provisioned in full. Provisions are also charged
on the basis of an assessment of individual debts in terms of the status of legal proceedings,
financial health of the debtor, information provided by legal counsel, etc.

Construction contracts

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Construction costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses to date

1070811 1 537 819

Less: progress billings

Amount due from customers under ¢

Amount due to customers under construction contracts
less amounts pre-paid te sub-contractors

1404

Amounts due from and to customers are included in trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 there were no retentions held by customers for contract work.

1.5.22 Other Current Assets

e
et e s sl
e B e i
-l I A e

Deferred expenses in 2017 and 2016 primarily include prepaid expenses for engagements.
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1.5.24 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
in banks. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow
statement can be reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

" 31 December 20 31 December 2016
e s
B i

Cash and current accounts with banks e

Total curre

ncial assets

All cash and cash equivalents are readily available as at 31 December 2017,

1.5.2%8 Assets held for sale

T 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
T T P B s

Total 7488

In 2016 it was decided to seli all real estate that company owned in Strakonice. Net book value of
the properties was CZK 7 488 thousands as of 31 December 2016, This asset was sold in 2017. The
sale price was CZK 12 500 thousands.

1.5.26 Issusd Capital

The authorised share capital of ICZ N.V. is EUR 20 million and is divided into 20 miflion shares with
a nominal value of EUR 1 each. As of 31 December 2017, the Company has issued 4 500 000 shares
with nominal vatue of EUR 1.00 each amounting to EUR 4 500 000 (CZ¥K 119 790 thousand).

1.5.27 Reserves

ecember 2016

31December 2017

Add|t|ona| 5 cag|ta| A1 e e e 789 50 e . 78960
Legal resnge e {1 061) S (1 061}

Own shares < e (193 058) e (193 058)

Transiation reserve

Total

In October 2015, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 3912 of its own shares from a small
shareholders for EUR 47 thousands {equivalent of CZK 1 268 thousands). The transaction was
successfully concluded in December 2015, Own shares are presented as a decrease of reserves.

In June 2012, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 779 666 of its own shares from a financial investor
CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 2 500 thousands (equivalent of CZK 63 500 thousands).
The transaction was successfully concluded in July 2012. Own shares are presented as a decrease
of reserves.

In July 2011, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 467 800 of its own shares from a financial investor
CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 3 000 thousands (equivalent of CZK 77 400 thousands).
The transaction was successfully concluded in September 2011.

In May 2010, ICZ N.V. has agreed to purchase back 311 866 of its own shares from a financiai
investor CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 2 000 thousands (equivalent of CZK 50 890
thousands). The transaction was successfully concluded in July 2010.

[
o
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1.5.28 Trade and Other Pavablsas

Payables to mployees

Soclal securlty and health msurance oayables ' ' 11841 12191
Tax payables (other than corporate income taxatlon) 25 963 44 594
Constructlon contracts !labllltles 15506 31710

Other short term payabfes 67 002 66 565
Total ' ' 305 957 o 406576

Trade accounts payable typically fall due for settlement within 14 - 60 days.

Trade accounts ageing

B 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

e o 153 161 222 806

- Trade accounts overdue more than 180 days e 111 93

T eais

Total Trade accaunts overdue

Totel Trade aCCOLII'ItS

1.5.29 Other Liabilities

Qther current liabilities

31 December 2017 T 31 necember 2016

JP expenses . g 239 . 7 948
Eghmated ||ab|||t|es and prowsmns e e e e e 71 93 1 s e 70 243

Accrued expenses principally consist of accruals for cutstanding vacation days, including social
security and health insurance, accrued audit expense.

Estimated liabilities primarily include employee bonuses, expected billing from suppliers and
expected provision for customer claims.

1.5.30 Financial Instruments

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2007,

The company and its subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Financial risk management objectives

The management of the Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations
of the Group through analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity
risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

o
A}

www.icz.nl



rcz Annual Report 2017

The management analyses the risks, and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures, regularly.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company is exposed to currency risk to a limited extent as a predominant part of transactions
are denominated in Czech crowns. The entity uses no currency hedging instruments.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date is as follows:

31 December 2017 7 i

The CZK thousaﬁd.eq.uivalenfé of aséets and liabirlit:‘es. in
foreign currencies are as follows:

EUR uso Total

Shortwtermrecegvabres e AL B L ot ot e e e 2 £ e e e 545}33 R 31 07 8 RO 85455
Cash s - . [ ”13 32? [ 1305331 380
.Other'assets S _— . . R 4,024 et e 1273 S 4152

Total assets 7673 44259 120998

Short-term payab C 81646 43700 125346
7314 1 7 315
88 960 43701 132 661

Accruals and other liabitities

Total liabilities

31 December 2016 |
The CZK thousand equivalents of assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are as follows:

EUR usp Total

Total ésse

Shart-term payables 163576 58343 221919
12 255 - 121255
175831 58343 234174

Accruals and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is mainly exposed to EUR and USD currencies. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease of CZK against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
ftems and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number indicates an increase in profit if CZK weakens against the relevant currency.

T e
e S ataiasierins
T L
Tl

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to a limited extent due to an insignificant use of short-
term financial instruments. The entity uses no interest hedging instruments.
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QOther price risks

The Company doesn't have any financial assets and liabilities that are exposed to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty might default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed
manthly and approved by management.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where
appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liguid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, grossed up for any
allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liguidity risk management rests with the Executive Board, which has built
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities
by continuousty monitering forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. Included in Note 1.5.33 is a listing of additional undrawn facilities
that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

h
L
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Liquidity risk tables

The following tabfes detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tabies have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tablfe includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

Less than 1 1-3 months 1-5 years 5+ years Total

month to 1 year Y 4 ota

Trade and other payables 150 966 72 146 337 - - 223 449
Mon-financial liabilities -

Current income tax liabilities - - 2771 - - 277t

RRaT i
Non-interest bearing 172 420 92826 42144 - . 307390

31 Decambar 2015 R R PR 118 e 1 b e e et

Trade and other payables 229 303 77 070 1928 - - 308 301

Non-financial liabilities -

Current income tax liabilities B . 433 ) ) 433

T T
307 143 77 421 2361 '

Other liabilities

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets, The
tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Group anticipates
that the cash flow will occur in a different period.

Less than 1
1-3 months 1-5 years 5+ years Total
month to 1 year y Y

51 becembor 301y . . e e
Trade and other

. 99 664 98 33t 40 977 6056 - 245 028
receivables

Non-financial assets - Current

. - - 13229 - - 13229
ncome tax assets

T R e Y TT
Non-interest bearing 102 551 98331 54206 6056 - 261 144

31December 2015 e e e

Trade and other

. 290 016 112753 11 009 12 663 - 426 441
receivables
Non-financial assets - Current
income tax assets

- 12 690 - - 12 690

S e s e
Non-interest bearing 308 529 114 981 26 993 12 663 - 463 166

o
(¥

www.icz.nl




Annual Report 2017

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

A number of the Company 's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
value, both financiat and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Fair values are categorized, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13, into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

(1) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(2) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

(3) Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values of level 3.

1.5.31 Subsidiaries

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Name of the company Registered of fice Ownership
interest
!CZ a. s S Na ﬁ;rébenechtl 1718/10 Praha 4 R 100% o
5.ICZas. . m'Na hFebenech Il 1718/10 Praha « “.100%
Expert& Partner englneermg c:z a s ~ Nahfebenech II 1713/10 Praha 4 7 100w
DELINFO spol S 1.0, -Londynske namésts 856/2 Brno WWM-””100%” B
ALES . et “ 1718/10 Praha T —————

\ s " Na hfebenech 11 1718/10, Prah 100%
- CzSovak;aa et o e e - o
e e e e mm““mm'Soblahovska 2050 B T
ICZ Slovakla a s S Soblahovska 2050 Treném o o 100% l
ICZ Polska Sp zo0. o R ‘UI Fransuska nr. 34 40 028 Katowrce '100%
ey Ukrame et .K'erSkly Shlyakh o 2 Boryspﬁ G
ICZ BH S Kra]a Petra I Karadordewca br 99a Ban]a Luka - 100%,..
ICZInvestas I o Na hrebenech II 1718/10 Praha4 S “100%”
Nadatnifond1CZ  NahfebenechI11718/10,Prahad  100%

Proportion of voting power held equals the proportion of ownership interest.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries match the principal activities of the parent company
except for Nadacni fond ICZ, a charity organization.

ICZ Invest a.s. was established as of 21 December 2017,

ICZ Poiska Sp. z 0.0. ceased its activities during 2004. Similarly, ICZ Ukraine and ICZ BH are
dormant entities.
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1.5.32 Related Party Transaction

The following table shows individuals and legal entities with an equity interest greater than
20 percent and the amount of their equity interest:

Sharehoider Qwnership percentage Ownership percentage

31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016
J:tkaRosendorrové e s 1t e 4o e 47,65% e e 47,66 G

. 3 4r74 %, S 34’74‘%
. 17,6 0% e . 5 150% S

Dther(mdwgdua i< } ettt e

Yot . 100‘00% P — 100'00% s e

The voting power held by the shareholders matches their holdings of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consoclidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

Compensation of key management personnef

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as
foHows:

i " 31December 2017 31 December 2016
S e
T e ; e e

Members of the management can use Company cars for private purposes.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The remuneration described above was fully paid within a year except following amounts which was
recognized in other payables.

B T
3337

QOther related party transactions

Jitka Rosendorfovd, a major shareholder of the Company, has been employed by ICZ a.s. Her
remuneration for 2017 and 2016 amounted to CZK 133 thousand and CZK 133 thousand,
respectively.

Bohuslav Cempirek, who is 2 member of the Executive Board of ICZ N.V., 1 % shareholder of ICZ
N.V. and Chief Executive Officer of ICZ a.s., subscribed 45,000 shares of ICZ NV at nominal value
of EUR 1 per share, paid in cash in total amount of EUR 45 000, on October 2, 2007. These shares
represent 1% of issued shares of ICZ N.V. as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017,
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1.5.23 Financing Facilities

Financing facilities

The Group has unsecured bank overdraft facmty, reviewed annually and payable at call as follows:

31 Deeember 2017
' 20 681

31 December 2016

" 33529
Amount unused 144 319 131471
Total e ot e et A8t e et A e 165 000 e

A mount used for cnvermg bank gua rantees Coe

1.5.34 Operating Leass Arrangements

The Group as Lessee

Leasing arrangements

The Group has entered into operating lease contracts in respect of cars and non-residential
premises.

Payments recognised as an expense

Operating lease payments recognised in the income statement for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 amounted to CZK 70 955 thousand and CZK 72 590 thousand,
respectively. The Group anticipates paying operating lease payments in similar amounts in the
following years.

Less than i
year
22 32 1 20 204.__..‘., e 4 2 52 5
Equment operatlng Iease e e e e o e 1 039 e et 504,,, P 1 543

1-5years 5+ years Total

Car operating lease arrangements

Tenancy agreements
P ractua! ohllgatlons e e e 1 et st e
2015

o operatmg p arrangements et et e e

‘24 384”"” 21 421 e 45 805
Equupment operatlng Iease h 1 389 745 - 4 2 134
e o s e e .‘46 628 ‘169 324‘. - 20 820 . ‘236 ?72

N 72401"' ' 191490“” 20320' 283711

Tenancv agreements
COntractua!ohllgatmns b S

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
The table above includes also non-cancellable operatmg leases.

Less than 1

15 years 5+ years Total
year

144 925

32 307“”-%"
32 807

Gorercsindsbigating T wae -
i e

Contractual obligat

209 210
209 210

20 820
2oszo

37 712
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1.5.35 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

ICZ a.s. and its subsidiaries have provided performance bonds for public sector projects upon
customer’s request. The performance bonds are in form of a bank guarantee and are not recorded
in the statement of financial position. As of 31 December 2017, they have provided performance
bonds in a form of bank guarantees totalling CZK 6 457 thousand (2016: CZK 18 481 thousand).
Furthermore, ICZ a.s. has provided rent related bank guarantee in the amount EUR 557 thousand
(2016 - EUR 557 thousand).

As of 31 December 2017, the group is involved in one legal dispute with former employee as a
defendant. The potential amount of claim has been covered by a provision in the amount of CZK
100 thousand (2016: CZK 563 thousand). Furthermore there is potential threat that will be taken
legal steps against the group in connection with warranty claim. The group has provisioned for the
potential future liability of 18 CZK million.

- o~
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any Financial

2.1 Company Balance Sheet as at December
31, 2017

Before the result appropriation

(Expressed in EUR 1 000)

Note 2017 2016

ASSETS
1nve5tment5 e et e e e e 3 1 2 BGGN 14 352
Tnta| non-cun.tnt assets e et et e e 12 355"“ R 14 352

CURRENTASSETS s ot
Trade and other recewables 4 2670 1352
Deferred income tax recewables 33 20

Other assets

Cash and cas equwalents

Total current assets o

SHA. REHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND m axunss )
Shareholders Equuty 6

mﬁ\w ﬁww“ﬂw“m\ﬁ‘“m‘wﬁ‘lm\2H‘ﬂW%Mﬂmm.wﬂww?‘ﬁf

Issued cap|ta| ) . . 500 e .,4.50.0.
Share premlum 7178 7178

ou shares e o s e e e ....(7 547) ...(7 547)
Translatmn reserve et e e e e 931.......... 350
Reaino earmngs e e o e e e e e et )8 T S eet
Nt result e year e e oot e e e e e 58 516
Equnty attrlbutabie to equlty holders ofthe cumuany T T T 14009 1a6s8

NON-CI L1 'I.'iE. '
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payab# ' 7 1 511 1 026

rotatcument nasitias T
roaLmmEs T
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - T 15 582 " 15 747

The notes on pages 71 to 75 are an integral part of these company financial statements.
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2.2 Company Income Statement for the Year
Ended December 31, 2017

{(Expressed in EUR 1 000)

e T
Share in results from participating interests, after taxation 103 2526
G e
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR 220 2536

The notes on pages 71 to 75 are an integral part of these company financial statements.

2.3 Motes to the Accounts

2.3.1 aeneral

ICZ N.V. is a public limited liability company, incorporated under the laws of The Netherlands on
October 02, 2007, having its registerad seat in Amsterdam, The Netherlands. The Company mainly
acts as a holding and finance company and has its office address at Strawinskylaan 403, WTC,
Tower A, 4th floor, 1077XX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

The current accounting period started on lanuary 1, 2017 and ended on December 31, 2017,
The comparative accounting period started on January 1, 2016 and ended on Decernber 31, 2016.
The company financial statements are part of the 2017 financial statements of ICZ N.V.

The description of the Company’s activities and the group structure, as included in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, also applies to the company financial statements,

2.3.2 SBignificant Accounting Policies

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements as set
forth in Title 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

For the principles for the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities and determination
of the results for its company financial statements, ICZ applies the possibility of article 2:362,
paragraph 8 of the Dutch Civil Code. This means that the principles for the recognition and
measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of results (“accounting policies™) of the
company financial statements of ICZ N.V. are the same as those applied for the consolidated
financial statements under IFRS as adopted by the European Union. For details reference is made
to the notes to the consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 46. The investments in
subsidiaries are stated applying the equity method as of when control can be exercised over the
subsidiaries’ operational and financial activities. Dividends from investments are recorded as
deduction of the investment in the year they are declared.

Assets and liabilities are stated at face value unless indicated otherwise.
Participating interests in group companies

Participating interests in group companies are accounted for in the company financial statements
according to the equity method. Refer to the basis of consolidation accounting policy in the
consolidated financial statements.

-
[,
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The share in the result of participating interests consists ¢of the share of the Company in the resuit
of these participating interests. Results on transactions involving the transfer of assets and liahilities
between the Company and its participating interests and mutually between participating interests
themselves, are eliminated to the extent that they can be considered as not realised.

2.3.3 Investments

31 Decemper 720177

(Expressed in EUR 1 OOOJ

Begmmng ()fthe year e e A e 8 b b3 o 12 L0 Lt 152 5 ot st it

New shares

Ne{ resu|t thhe year et e e 8 5 £ <R 8 A 5 55 185 5 S

nd received

at n adJustment

End of the vear '

ICZ a.s. 'TCZ Tnvest ) Total
a.S.

e
e 14 s
e -
T T e
(2 307)'“““”' o @230

630 S 630

, e

2.3.4 Reaceijvables

_____ (Expressed in EUR 1 000)

Current recelvab!es

31 oecemhef 2017 31 December 201 5
- 2 662 . 34 )

VAT

Other recelvab!es S

Total

Current receivables include the receivables from group undertakings:

(Expressed in EUR 1 000)

cher Ic recewableg e B8 5 L AP AR 35

Total

2.3.5 {ash at Banks

31 Deoernber 2017

31 DeoemberZO:lG
2662' ' 1345
T

{Expressed in EUR 1 000)

KBC Bank Nederfand N V - current accountw .

Tctal

o
e

31 Deoeﬁibérﬁl)l?

k. Deoember 2015'
' 13
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2.2.&6 Shareholders’ Tguity

The Company's authorised share capital amounts to EUR 20 000 000 divided into 20 000 000
ordinary shares of EUR 1 each. At the balance sheet date a total of 4 500 000 ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid.

In October 2015, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 3912 of its own shares from a small
shareholders for EUR 47 thousands (equivalent of CZK 1 268 thousands). The transaction was
successfully concluded in December 2015.

In June 2012, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 779 666 of its own shares from a financial investor
CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 2 500 thousands (equivalent of CZK 63 500 thousands).
The transaction was successfully concluded in July 2012.

InJuly 2011, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 467 800 of its own shares from a financial investor
CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 3 000 thousands (equivalent of CZK 77 400 thousands).
The transaction was successfully concluded in September 2011.

In May 2010, ICZ N.V. agreed to purchase back 311 866 of its own shares from a financial investor
CEE IT Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. for EUR 2 000 thousands (equivalent of CZK 50 890 thousands).
The transaction was successfully concluded in July 2010.

Movements in shareholders' equity are as follows:
(Expressed in EUR 1 000)

Issued and
fully paid Net result
share Share Translation Retained for the
capital premium reserve earnings year Total
31.12.2015 4 500 7178 295 {1 655) 2798 13116

Profit current accounting
pericd

- 2536 2536

Appropnat;on ofresu!t e 2 798 (2798) e
Differences from

revaluation of foreign - - 5 1 - 6
consolidated companies

Dividend distributicn - - - {1000) - {1G00)
31.12.2016 4 500 7178 300 144 2536 14 658

Profit current accounting
period

- - - - 220 220
Appro.priation' ofresult I '2'5'3('5 (i 5'3'6) R
Differences fram

revaluation of foreign - - 631 - - 631
consoelidated companies

ownshag—es RS
Dividend distribution - - - (1 500) - (1500}
31.12.2017 4 500 7178 931 1 180 220 14 009

The General Meeting of Shareholders will be asked to approve the following appropriation of the
2017 profit after tax: the net result will be allocated to the retained earnings based on final decision
of the shareholders during the General Meeting. This proposal has not been reflected in the
accompanying annual accounts.
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Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity and net result per the consolidated financial statements with
shareholders’ equity and net result per the company financial statements:

" 31 December 2015

Shareholders’ equity according to the consolidated balance
sheet {in CZK '000)

C|Dsmg ex(:hange rate e e e e R b s i B 25540 e s 2 7 ,0.2(].

337 792 373 447

Translation Ir‘lto EUR . 13 228 h 7 13 821

Translahon d|ﬁ’erenc3 . . ] 783 o 83 '

Sharehofders equlty accordlng to the separate balance
sheet (in EUR '000)

14 009 14 653

31 December 2017 T 31 December 2015

Net result according to the consolidated profit and loss
account (in CZK '000)

5798 68 563

Average rate for the 12 month pE”Od e i £ b e e 1 25 330 e e et e .2.7.5:).33.

Trans|at|on mtg EUR R e e 220 2530

Net result according to the separate profst and foss
account {(in EUR '000)

220 2 535

As stipulated by the Article 2.362 (Title 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code), different
presentation currencies are used for consolidated financial statements and standalone financial
statements in view of nature of the operations of the Group.

The foreign exchange rate is based on the historical rates and this results in a translation difference.

The reconciliation of the equity has been performed o disclose the translation of equity expressed
in CZK in the consolidated financial statement into the presentation currency of standalone financial
statements which is EUR.

2.3.7  Other Liahilities and Accrued Expenseas

(Expressed in EUR 1 000)
31 December 2017 o 3 December 2015

Account payable e s P e B A i S . . 1 ;

63
“tsoo 7 1000

Payable saiary expense

Accrued expenses

Dlwdends payab e to hareho ders T
Sthor e ,
Total - S R e e

(Expressed in EUR 1 000 )

’ T 31 December 2017 31 December 2015
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2:3.8 Provision for Corporate Tax

The corporate tax is based on the fiscal result, taking into account that certain income and expenses
as reported in the profit and loss account are exempted from taxation.

2.3.9  Directors and Emplovees

The Company has one employee and three executive directors. The Company has three supervisory
directors. (2016: the same)

The remuneration of the Executive Board amounted to 31 600 EUR in 2017 (31 600 EUR in 2016).
The remuneration of the Supervisory Board amounted to 31 600 EUR in 2017 (29897 EUR in 2018).

2.3.10 Related Party Transaction

In 2017 the Company provided management services to its subsidiaries for the total fee of EUR
232 794 (EUR 222 352 in 2016), incurred interest income of EUR 25 658 {(EUR 8 231 in 2016) and
interest expense of EUR 5 467 (EUR 6 096 in 2016) related to intercompany cash-pooling.

The outstanding balances with the related parties are disclosed in the notes 2.3.4 and 2.3.7. For
the information about the dividends received and paid refer to notes 2.3.3 and 2.3.6 respectively,

Al outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and are to
be settled in cash within two months of the end of the reporting period. None of the balances is
secured. No expense has been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad of doubtful debts
in respect of amounts owed by related parties.

2.3.01 Audit Fees

With reference to Section 2:382a(1) and (2) of the Netherlands Civil Code, the following fees for
the financial year have been charged by KPMG Accountants NV to the Company, its subsidiaries and
other consoclidated entities:

_(Expressed in EUR 1 000)

T 2017 2016
WG N R "
KOM G Caech RapuBiie i
KPMG Siovaia T S
e e

2.3.12 Post Balance Shest Events

No matters or circumstances of importance have arisen since the end of the financial year, which
have significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations or the affairs of the Company.

. =
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Amsterdam, 29 March 2018

The Executive Board

P. Rosendorf . Jirkovec

B.Cempirek

The Supervisory Board

i s d
Aliisioilars i

J. Muller A. Hausenblasova
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M. Marek

B
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ODther Information

2.1 Provisions in the Articles of Association
governing the appropriation of profit

Subject to the provision under Dutch law that no dividends can be declared until all losses have
been recovered, profits are at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation.

3.2 Independence auditor’s report

The independence auditor’s report is set out on the next page.
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Independent auditor’s report

To: The General meeting of ICZ N.V.

Report on the accompanying financial statements

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements 2017 of ICZ N.V., based in Amsterdam. The financial
statements include the consolidated financial statements and the company financial statements.
In our opinion:

— the accompanying consoclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of ICZ N.V. as at 31 December 2017 and of its result and its cash flows for 2017 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

—— the accompanying company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of ICZ N.V. as at 31 December 2017 and of its result for 2017 in accordance with Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:
1 the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;

2 the following consolidated statements for 2017: the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows; and

3 the notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The company financial statements comprise:

1 the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

2 the company income statement for 2017; and

3 the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of ICZ N.V. in accordance with the ‘Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties’
(Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the 'Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants
bij assurance-opdrachten’ (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with
respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore, we have complied with the ‘Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’
{(VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

KPMG Accountants N.V., registered with fhe trade register in the Netherlands under number 33283683 is a member firm of the
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG international Coopsrative (KPMG International’), a Swiss entity.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

— director's report;

— other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

— is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements,

— contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained
through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other
information contains material misstatements.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is less
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the
director's report, in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and other
information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Description of the responsibilities for the financial statements

Responsibilities of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board for the financial
statements

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
Furthermore, the Executive Board is responsible for such internal control as the Executive Board
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to errors or fraud.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the Executive Board is responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, the Executive Board should prepare the financial statements using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Executive Board either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0. The Executive Board
should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.




" 'Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

“Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain
- sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we
may not have detected all material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errors and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professiona! scepticism
throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and
independence requirements. Our audit included e.g.:

—- identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to errors or fraud, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from errors, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

— obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

— evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Executive Board;

— concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidénce obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company ceasing to continue as a going concern;

— evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures; and

— evaluating whether the financial statements represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing,
supervising and performing the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and
extent of the audit procedures to be carried out for group entities. Decisive were the size andfor
the risk profile of the group entities or operations. On this basis, we selected group entities for
which an audit or review had to be carried out on the complete set of financial information or
specific items.



We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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